
 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 
DATE: March 25, 2019 

 

TO: All Prospective Bidders 

FROM: Norman David 

SUBJECT: IFB P18275 – Janitorial and Cleaning Supplies 

 
 

Q1.   Is this bid for a single vendor who can supply you with everything on this list or can 

different vendors bid for different category on the list? 
 

A1.   VTA intends to award to a single vendor who can supply VTA’s requirements. 

 
 
Q2.   Were any increases incurred during the last contract? 

 

A2.   The last contract allowed for price increases of up to 5% from the beginning of the 3rd year 

of the contract and at the beginning of each year throughout the contract term. 
 
 
Q3.   Can you provide the current/previous vendor information and pricing? 

 

A3.   Attachment 1 starting on page 4 of this Q&A document. 
 
 
Q4.   If vendor cannot meet the delivery time of 3 days after receipt of order cannot be met, will 

the vendor’s bid still be considered. 
 

A4.    If delivery time is longer than 3 days, the bid will be considered non-responsive. 

 

  

Q5.  How often are orders placed and in what quantities? 
 

A5.   Orders are placed on an as-needed basis and quantities vary based on site and need. Not 

all sites use the same supplies. Historically, orders were placed every week or two. The 

“annual estimated usage” on the bid form are VTA-wide estimated quantities. 

 

 

Q6.  Do the receiving locations have docks & forklifts to unload? 
 

A6.   All loading docks do not need lift gate service. VTA has fork lifts at all unloading sites. 

  

 

Q7.  If vendor is unable to quote on every item listed, will the bid submittal be deemed non-

responsive? 
 

A7.   Vendors are required to provide a bid on every item listed. VTA also reserves the right to 

reject all bids or waive any informalities on any bid for the best interest of VTA. 



 
 

 

Q8.  How many samples of each item need to be submitted for review if we’re quoting on 

alternate brands, and where do the samples & specs need to be sent? 
 

A8.   No samples will be required by VTA, just SDS sheets and manufacturers brochures or 

product documentation. 

 

Please see Addendum 1 which contains the changes to the brand name or equal 

determination. 

 

 

Q9.  Is the contract pricing fixed for five (5) years? 
 

A9.   The contract is a firm, fixed price for 5 years. The bid sheet, Attachment A – Bid Form 1-B 

Schedule of Prices and Estimated Quantities, allows for pricing differences for each year 

of the contract. 

 

 

Q10.  Does VTA recommend training (Railway Protection Safety Training) multiple drivers for 

delivery or supplies? 
 

A10.  VTA requires the contractor to be able to meet all VTA requirements for delivery of supplies 

ordered. VTA recommends training multiple drivers delivering to the Guadalupe Division 

to comply with VTA’s requirements and to avoid service interruption. 

 

 

Q11.  The costs/fees listed on page 70 of the IFB document are different from Bid Form 1-B. 
 

A11. Please see Addendum 1 which contains the updated information regarding Safety 

Precautions, Programs and First Aid Requirements, including the associated costs/fees 

reimbursed to the contractor. 

 

 

Q12.  How long are the classes to get permitted (Restricted Access Permit)? 
 

A12. Classes are 5 hours long. Classes must be arranged in advance. The bid winner will work 

with the VTA Authorized Representative for initial training classes. 

 

 

Q13.  How frequent do the classes occur? 
 

A13. Weekly on Fridays between 7:30 am – 12:00 pm 

 

  



 
Q14. If an employee suddenly quits and delivery needs to be performed at the Guadalupe 

Division, what options do the contractor have if a trained back-up is not immediately 

available? 
 

A14. Escorting by VTA is available if back-up is not available. The contractor will be required 

to have a trained back-up available for future deliveries to the Guadalupe Division. 

 

Q15. Please provide a clarification on bid item 85 and describe the item. 
 

A15. Item 85 is the key to access the Kimberly – Clark paper towel dispensers. 

 

 

Q16. Item 92 on the bid form “Dust Pan 1410 Lobby Style” is a Carlisle part number but the 

handle is metal not plastic. Do you want Dust Pan 1410 or a different one that has a plastic 

handle? 
 

A16. Metal handle is acceptable. This item may have changed in manufacturing process since 

the pervious IFB was awarded over 7 years ago.  

 

 

Q17. What is the size of item 20 on the bid form? 
 

A17. Size is 1-gallon; quantity 4 in a case. 

  

 

Q18. What is item 24 on the bid form? What size is it. 
 

A18. 1-gallon plastic bottles: https://www.pgpro.com/brands/febreze/febreze-fabric-refresher-

deep-penetrating/ 

 

 

Q19. Are items 26 and 27 the same products only different sizes? 
 

A19. Yes, items 26 and 27 are the same products but different sizes. 

 

 

Q20. For items 28, 29, and 30, are you looking refill for your existing dispensers or are 6 oz 

aerosol Odor Eliminate acceptable? 
 

A20. We are looking to refill the existing dispensers. If the 6 oz aerosol Odor Eliminator fits and 

operates within the dispenser unit and is within the scent profile, the brand name is not a 

priority. 

 

 

 

https://www.pgpro.com/brands/febreze/febreze-fabric-refresher-deep-penetrating/
https://www.pgpro.com/brands/febreze/febreze-fabric-refresher-deep-penetrating/
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